It appeared to many of us that the period of polar martyrdom should have been closed long ago, and that a stand should be made against the absurd appraisement of the greatness of explorers by the magnitude of the sufferings they endured. It seemed to us that experience already sufficed to indicate ways of carrying on research in the polar regions with comparatively little risk and practically no suffering if only it were possible to collect such experience and subject it to critical analysis and to show how it could be applied practically. Many of us had deplored the haphazard management of successive polar expeditions and the absence of continuity between them, each expedition being created with infinite labour, carried out at great expense, and allowed to melt away.

The opportunity of remedying this unfortunate state of things arose out of the tragedy of Scott's last Antarctic expedition. The scientific staff which sailed on the Terra Nova had a cohesion lacking in previous expeditions. Coming when it did, the appeal of Scott's struggle to reach the pole, and his heroic persistence to the end in his fight against the unexampled difficulties of the way back, were irresistible, and a great wave of hero-worship raised a very large fund to provide for a worthy memorial of those who fell and for the needs of their dependents. The chief memorial was the working up and publication of the scientific results of the expedition, and when this was complete the Committee, composed of the president of the Royal Society, the president of the Royal Geographical Society, and the Lord Mayor of London, found themselves in possession of a balance of £12,000. Mr. Priestley and Mr. Debenham, of the Terra Nova, and Mr. Wordie, of the Endurance, all settled in Cambridge, persuaded the memorial committee to devote this sum to the establishment of the Scott Polar Research Institute, which came into existence in 1926, the University of Cambridge undertaking to administer the funds, of which £6000 was earmarked as a building fund and £6000 as a general fund, the interest of which is at present the sole income of the Institute. Mr. Debenham has been appointed director of the Institute, with Miss Drake as part-time assistant. To them we owe the admirable arrangement of the rooms which contain the collections now on view.

These consist of an Arctic room and an Antarctic room, each containing the nucleus of a library, with maps and relics of expeditions, other rooms with a good representation of the equipment for polar travellers and a fine series of photographs. These have been contributed by many friends, including the widows of Admiral Sir Albert Markham and of Capt. Scott. A special feature is made of MS. records and diaries of explorers, and anyone desirous of finding a permanent abiding-place for papers of this kind, or any other mementoes of polar expeditions, is assured of the grateful acceptance and careful custody of such treasures. In some cases the promise of handsome bequests has been made, and the steady growth of the library and photograph collection is assured.

An important aid in this direction is the possession of the whole stock of the reports of the *Terra Nova* expedition dealing with the geographical, geological, meteorological, and geophysical work. These volumes may be sold or given in exchange for the reports of other expeditions. A feature is made of the complete cataloguing of the collections.

The only condition imposed by the Scott Memorial Committee is that a suitable memorial building shall be erected before 1936, and in view of the present cost of building it is to be hoped that wealthy friends of geographical discovery will supplement the sum

available, so as to make it possible to house the collections in a manner worthy alike of the memory of the great leader whose name it bears and of all he stands for as the best type of the naval explorer, worthy also of the University and of the spirit of research which makes scientific truth its only care.

The Institute, as yet, is in its days of small things, but its promoters dream great dreams of rapid growth and continual adaptation to the changing conditions of modern research. In particular, we cherish the ambition of attaining completeness in the library by securing all published works on the polar regions or transcripts of the relevant portions of such works as have become bibliographical curiosities of fictitious value in their original editions. As many works of exploration have been published without indexes, an effort must be made to supply an index for every published polar book, and a great general index which will embrace all polar literature. Similar completeness cannot be sought for the collection of gear and apparatus, in which models of ships and aircraft must necessarily take the place of the real things. The museum also would only aim at being an index collection with the leading types and full reference to the great museums in which a complete representation of species and specimens are to be

University and Educational Intelligence.

Cambridge.—Mr. R. B. Braithwaite, King's College, has been appointed University lecturer in moral science. Mr. T. R. B. Sanders, Corpus Christi College, has been appointed University demonstrator in engineering. D. R. P. Murray, Pembroke College, has been elected to the Benn W. Levy studentship in biochemistry. Miss W. L. P. Sargent, Newnham College, and G. R. Gedge, Trinity Hall, have been awarded senior studentships of the Goldsmiths' Company.

The readerships in the morphology of vertebrates and in estate management, vacant through the death of Dr. Gadow and the retirement of Mr. F. B. Smith, respectively, are not being renewed. The following teaching officers retire on Sept. 30 next: A. Berry, King's College, and H. W. Richmond, King's College, University lecturers in mathematics; T. K. W. Fair, Jesus College, University demonstrator in chemical physiology; and A. Hopkinson, Emmanuel College, University demonstrator in anatomy.

Volume 13 of the Journal of the College of Technology, Manchester, has 240 pages and 9 plates, 183 pages and the plates being devoted to original articles by the members of the staff, and the remainder to abstracts of papers which have been contributed by the staff to scientific and technological periodicals, mainly during the years 1925-1927, but a few in earlier years. Of the 13 original articles, 3 deal with mechanical, 1 with electrical, and 1 with civil engineering, 2 with textiles, 2 with mathematics, 3 with applied physics, and 1 with industrial administration. The abstracts number 64, and deal with subjects of the same type. With one exception the papers were set up and the whole journal was printed in the College, and reflects great credit on the printing department. The original articles and the abstracts show that the staff is making valuable contributions to the solution of the scientific and technological problems which arise in industry, and that the Man-chester College of Technology retains its position in this respect as one of the best in Great Britain.